Decisions of the Finchley and Golders Green Area Planning Committee

2 November 2016

Members Present:-

Councillor John Marshall (Chairman)

Councillor Arjun Mittra Councillor Shimon Ryde Councillor Alan Schneiderman Councillor Jim Tierney

Councillor Melvin Cohen Councillor Graham Old (Substitute)

Apologies for Absence

Councillor Eva Greenspan

1. MINUTES OF LAST MEETING

The Committee noted that agenda item 13 (130-132 Audley Road, London, NW4 3HG) will be considered by the Hendon Area Committee.

RESOLVED that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 13th October 2016 be agreed as a correct record.

2. ABSENCE OF MEMBERS (IF ANY)

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Eva Greenspan, Chairman of the Committee. The Vice-Chairman, Councillor John Marshall took the chair.

Councillor Graham Old was in attendance in his capacity as substitute Member of the Committee.

3. DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS (IF ANY)

The following interests were declared:

Councillor	Item(s)	Nature of interest	Detail
Shimon Ryde	9 (Yamor House 285 Golders Green Road London NW11 9JE - 16/5062/FUL)	Non- pecuniary	That the Councillor is a member of Agudas Israel Housing Association, the applicant for this item. The Councillor indicated that he would leave the meeting when this item is considered and therefore would not be taking part in the consideration or voting of the item.

4. REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)

None.

5. ADDENDUM (IF APPLICABLE)

The Committee noted the addendum to the report and considered the information under the relevant agenda item.

TROJAN HOUSE 34 ARCADIA AVENUE LONDON N3 2JU - 16/5266/FUL

The Committee noted the presentation from the Planning Officer and the information as set out in the Officer's report and the addendum.

The Committee received an oral representation from the applicant's representative.

Votes were recorded as follows:

For	7
Against	0
Abstentions	0

It was therefore RESOLVED to APPROVE the application as per the Officer's recommendations and amended conditions in the addendum.

7. ARCADE HOUSE FINCHLEY ROAD LONDON NW11 7TL - 16/3389/FUL

The Planning Officer presented the item and the Committee noted the information as set out in the report.

Votes were recorded as follows:

For	7
Against	0
Abstentions	0

The Committee RESOLVED to APPROVE the application as per the Officer's recommendations.

8. TEMPLE FORTUNE HOUSE FINCHLEY ROAD LONDON NW11 7TL - 16/3388/FUL

The Committee received a presentation from the Planning Officer on the application.

A speaker provided an oral representation in objection to the application.

Votes were recorded as follows:

For	7
Against	0
Abstentions	0

It was RESOLVED to APPROVE the application as per the Officer's recommendations.

9. YAMOR HOUSE 285 GOLDERS GREEN ROAD LONDON NW11 9JE - 16/5062/FUL

Due to the interest declared at the beginning of the meeting, Councillor Shimon Ryde excluded himself from the meeting and left the room for the duration of the item.

The Committee received a presentation from the Planning Officer and Highways Officer. The Committee received an oral representation from the applicant's representative.

The Committee queried Architect and Highways Officer regarding the impacts of the lack of parking provision.

The Committee voted on the recommendations as set out in the Officer's report.

Votes were recorded as follows:

For	0
Against	2
Abstentions	3

^{*}Councillor Shimon Ryde was not in attendance for this item and Councillor Arjun Mittra did not partake in the votes due to not being present for the entire application

Councillor Melvin Cohen moved a motion which was seconded by Councillor Graham Old and agreed by the Committee to amend the recommendations, with the following reasons.

Votes were recorded as follows:

For	2
Against	0
Abstentions	3

^{*}Councillor Shimon Ryde was not in attendance for this item and Councillor Arjun Mittra did not partake in the votes due to not being present for the entire application

The Committee therefore RESOLVED to APPROVE the application, being a reversal of the officer's recommendation for the following reasons, subject to S106 for Affordable Housing and Highways contribution with further conditions to be delegated to officers in agreement with the Chairman.

Reasons:

- 1. That there had been no objections from Environmental health.
- 2. That there are parking spaces nearby in addition to the 13 parking spaces provided.
- 3. The proposals provide much needed local affordable housing.
- 4. That part of the redeveloped site had been left unattended for a long period.

- 5. The proposals substantially improved gateway for Golders Green.
- 6. That the benefits of the proposal outweigh the lack of parking provision.

Approve subject to s106

RECOMMENDATION I:

That the applicant and any other person having a requisite interest be invited to enter by way of an agreement into a planning obligation under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any other legislation which is considered necessary for the purposes seeking to secure the following:

- 1. Paying the Council's legal and professional costs of preparing the Agreement and any other enabling agreements;
- 2. All obligations listed below to become enforceable in accordance with a timetable to be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority;
- 3. Provision of affordable housing

Provision of 10no. affordable units.

4. Highways feasibility investigation

A contribution of £5,000 towards the feasibility of assessing the need for a right turning lane into the development to ensure that the right turning traffic from Golders Green Road travelling eastbound into the site does not create obstruction of the through traffic on Golders Green Road.

- 5. Commitment to provide additional contributions towards the implementation of the outcome of the feasibility.
- 6. Monitoring of the agreement £250

RECOMMENDATION II:

That upon completion of the agreement the Planning Performance and Business Development Manager approve the planning application under delegated powers subject to the following conditions:

1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved plans:

```
GGR.768.91.A (Floor Plan Level 1)
GGR.768.92 (Floor Plan Level 2)
GGR.768.93 (Floor Plan Level 3)
GGR.768.94 (Floor Plan Level 4)
GGR.768.95 (Floor Plan Level 5)
GGR.768.96 (Floor Plan Level 6)
GGR.768.97 (Roof Plan)
GGR.768.98 (View from Golders Green Road)
GGR.768.99 (View from N at Golders Green Rd / N Circular Rd Junction
GGR.768.101.B (Proposed North East Elevation)
GGR.768.102.B (Proposed North West Elevation)
```

GGR.768.103 (South West Elevation)

GGR.768.104 (South East Elevation)

GGR.768.107 (Section A-A showing relationship with 2-4 Sinclair Grove)

GGR.768.109.B (Proposed Streetscape to Golders Green Road)

GGR.768.110.B (Proposed Streetscape to Golders Green Road)

GGR.768.112 (Section A-A, Section B-B)

GGR.768.113 (Section 1-1, Section 2-2)

Acoustic Impact Assessment (dated 12/08/2016)

Air Quality Assessment (dates 01/07/2015)

Archaeological Assessment 9dated September 2016)

Daylight, Sunlight & Overshadowing Report (dated July 2016)

Design and Access Statement (dated July 2016)

Noise Assessment (dated 30/06/2015)

Planning Statement (dated 15/07/2016)

SuDS Pre-Commencement Planning Condition (dated 21/08/2015)

Sustainable Design & Construction Statement & Energy Strategy Report (dated October 2015)

Residential Travel Plan Statement (dated 21/08/2015)

Transport Statement (dated 21/08/2015)

Tree Survey, Constraints & Feasibility Study and Arboricultural Impact Assessment with Preliminary Tree Protection Plan (dated 19 May 2015)

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning and so as to ensure that the development is carried out fully in accordance with the plans as assessed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy DM01 of the Local Plan Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012).

2. This development must be begun within three years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

- 3. a) No development other than demolition works shall take place until details of the materials to be used for the external surfaces of the building(s) and hard surfaced areas hereby approved have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
 - b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the materials as approved under this condition.

Reason: To safeguard the character and visual amenities of the site and wider area and to ensure that the building is constructed in accordance with Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policies 1.1, 7.4, 7.5 and 7.6 of the London Plan 2015.

4. a) No development shall take place until details of the levels of the building(s), road(s) and footpath(s) in relation to the adjoining land and highway(s) and any

other changes proposed in the levels of the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

b) The development shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the details as approved under this condition and retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development is carried out at suitable levels in relation to the highway and adjoining land having regard to drainage, gradient of access, the safety and amenities of users of the site, the amenities of the area and the health of any trees or vegetation in accordance with policies CS NPPF, CS1, CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policies DM01, DM04 and DM17 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), and Policies 7.4, 7.5, 7.6 and 7.21 of the London Plan 2015.

- 5. No site works or works on this development including demolition or construction work shall commence until a Demolition and Construction Management and Logistics Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be implemented in full accordance with the details approved under this plan. The Demolition and Construction Management and Logistics Plan submitted shall include, but not be limited to, the following information:
 - Details of the routing of construction vehicles to the site, hours or access, egress arrangements within the site and security procedures;
 - ii. Site preparation and construction stages of the development;
 - iii. Details of provisions for recycling of materials, the provision on site of a storage/delivery area for all plant, site huts, site facilities and materials;
 - iv. Details showing how all vehicles associated with the construction works are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage to mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway;
 - v. The methods to be used and the measures to be undertaken to control the emission of dust, noise and vibration arising from construction works;
 - vi. A suitable and efficient means of suppressing dust, including the adequate containment of stored or accumulated material so as to prevent it becoming airborne at any time and giving rise to nuisance;
 - vii. Noise mitigation measures for all plant and processors;
 - viii. Details of contractors compound and car parking arrangements;
 - ix. Details of interim car parking management arrangements for the duration of construction;
 - x. Details of a community liaison contact for the duration of all works associated with the development
- 6. a) Notwithstanding the details submitted with the application and otherwise hereby approved, no development other than demolition works shall take place until details of (i) A Refuse and Recycling Collection Strategy, which includes details of the collection arrangements and whether or not refuse and recycling collections would be carried out by the Council or an alternative service provider, (ii) Details of the enclosures, screened facilities and internal areas of the proposed building to be used for the storage of recycling containers, wheeled refuse bins

and any other refuse storage containers where applicable, and (iii) Plans showing satisfactory points of collection for refuse and recycling, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

b) The development shall be implemented and the refuse and recycling facilities provided in full accordance with the information approved under this condition before the development is first occupied and the development shall be managed in accordance with the information approved under this condition in perpetuity once occupation of the site has commenced.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance for the development and satisfactory accessibility; and to protect the amenities of the area in accordance with Policy CS14 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013).

7. Before the development hereby permitted is occupied the car parking spaces as shown on Drawing No. GGR.768.91 A shall be provided and shall not be used for any purpose other than parking of vehicles in connection with the approved development.

Reason: To ensure that adequate and satisfactory provision is made for the parking of vehicles in the interests of pedestrian and highway safety and the free flow of traffic in accordance with London Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of the Core Strategy (Adopted September 2012) and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted September 2012).

8. Before the development hereby permitted is occupied cycle parking spaces in accordance with London Plan Cycle Parking Standards shall be provided and shall not be used for any purpose other than parking of vehicles in connection with the approved development.

Reason: To ensure that adequate and satisfactory provision is made for the parking of vehicles in the interests of pedestrian and highway safety and the free flow of traffic in accordance with London Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of the Core Strategy (Adopted September 2012) and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted September 2012).

9. Prior to the commencement of the development, detail of any works proposed on public highway shall be submitted to and approved by the Highway Authority and works shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved plans.

Reason: To ensure that the access is satisfactory in terms of highway safety and in accordance with London Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of the Core Strategy (Adopted September 2012) and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted September 2012).

10. Before the permitted development is occupied a full Delivery and Servicing Plan (DSP) shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of highway safety in accordance London Borough of Barnet's Local Plan Policy CS9 of the Core Strategy (Adopted September 2012) and Policy DM17 of Development Management Policies (Adopted September 2012).

11. Part 1

Before development commences other than for investigative work:

- a) A desktop study (Preliminary Risk Assessment) shall be carried out which shall include the identification of previous uses, potential contaminants that might be expected, given those uses, and other relevant information. Using this information, a diagrammatical representation (Conceptual Model) for the site of all potential contaminant sources, pathways and receptors shall be produced. The desktop study (Preliminary Risk Assessment) and Conceptual Model shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. If the desktop study and Conceptual Model indicate no risk of harm, development shall not commence until approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
- b) If the desktop study and Conceptual Model indicate any risk of harm, a site investigation shall be designed for the site using information obtained from the desktop study and Conceptual Model. This shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to that investigation being carried out on site. The investigation must be comprehensive enough to enable:
- a risk assessment to be undertaken.
- refinement of the Conceptual Model, and
- the development of a Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements.

The risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model shall be submitted, along with the site investigation report, to the Local Planning Authority.

c) If the risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model indicate any risk of harm, a Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements, using the information obtained from the site investigation, and also detailing any post remedial monitoring shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to that remediation being carried out on site.

Part 2

d) Where remediation of contamination on the site is required completion of the remediation detailed in the method statement shall be carried out and a report that provides verification that the required works have been carried out, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is occupied.

Reason: To ensure the development can be implemented and occupied with adequate regard for environmental and public safety in accordance with Policy CS NPPF of the Local Plan Core Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012), DM04 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) and 5.21 of the London Plan 2015.

- 12.a) No development other than demolition works shall take place on site until a noise assessment, carried out by an approved acoustic consultant, which assesses the likely impacts of noise on the development and measures to be implemented to address its findings has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall include all calculations and baseline data, and be set out so that the Local Planning Authority can fully audit the report and critically analyse the content and recommendations
 - b) The measures approved under this condition shall be implemented in their entirety prior to the commencement of the use/first occupation of the development and retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the amenities of occupiers are not prejudiced by rail and/or road traffic and/or mixed use noise in the immediate surroundings in accordance with Policy DM04 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) and 7.15 of the London Plan 2015.

13.a) Before development commences, an air quality assessment report, written in accordance with the relevant current guidance, for the existing site and proposed development shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

It shall have regard to the air quality predictions and monitoring results from the Stage Four of the Authority's Review and Assessment, the London Air Quality Network and London Atmospheric Emissions Inventory. The report shall include all calculations and baseline data, and be set out so that the Local Planning Authority can fully audit the report and critically analyse the content and recommendations.

- b) A scheme for air pollution mitigation measures based on the findings of the report shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to development.
- c) The approved mitigation scheme shall be implemented in its entirety in accordance with details approved under this condition before any of the development is first occupied or the use commences and retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the amenities of occupiers are protected from the poor air quality in the vicinity in accordance with Policy DM04 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD, and Policy 5.3 of the London Plan 2015.

14. The level of noise emitted from the Comfort Cooling / Heating Exchange External Condensing Unit hereby approved shall be at least 5dB(A) below the background level, as measured from any point 1 metre outside the window of any room of a neighbouring residential property.

If the noise emitted has a distinguishable, discrete continuous note (whine, hiss, screech, hum) and/or distinct impulse (bangs, clicks, clatters, thumps), then it

shall be at least 10dB(A) below the background level, as measured from any point 1 metre outside the window of any room of a neighbouring residential property.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of occupiers of neighbouring properties in accordance with Policies DM04 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and 7.15 of the London Plan.

- 15.a) A scheme of hard and soft landscaping, including details of existing trees to be retained and size, species, planting heights, densities and positions of any soft landscaping, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development hereby permitted is commenced.
 - b) All work comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried out before the end of the first planting and seeding season following occupation of any part of the buildings or completion of the development, whichever is sooner, or commencement of the use.
 - c) Any existing tree shown to be retained or trees or shrubs to be planted as part of the approved landscaping scheme which are removed, die, become severely damaged or diseased within five years of the completion of development shall be replaced with trees or shrubs of appropriate size and species in the next planting season.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development in accordance with Policies CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012), Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) and 7.21 of the London Plan 2015.

- 16.a) No development other than demolition works shall take place until details of the proposed green wall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
 - b) The green wall shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved this condition prior to the commencement of the use or first occupation of the development and retained as such thereafter. Should part of the approved green roof be removed, die, become severely damaged or diseased within five years of the completion of development, it shall be replaced in accordance with the details approved by this condition.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the enjoyment of the occupiers of their homes in accordance with Policies DM04 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012) and 7.15 of the London Plan 2015.

17.a) Before the development hereby permitted is first occupied, a scheme detailing all play equipment to be installed in the communal amenity space shown on the drawings hereby approved shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

b) The development shall be implemented in full accordance with the details as approved under this condition prior to the first occupation and retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development represents high quality design and to accord with Policy CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), Policy DM02 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Residential Design Guidance SPD (adopted April 2013), the Planning Obligations SPD (adopted April 2013) and Policy 3.6 of the London Plan 2015.

- 18.a) The site shall not be brought into use or first occupied until details of the means of enclosure, including boundary treatments, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
 - b) The development shall be implemented in accordance with the details approved as part of this condition before first occupation or the use is commenced and retained as such thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the appearance of the locality and/or the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties and to confine access to the permitted points in the interest of the flow of traffic and conditions of general safety on the adjoining highway in accordance with Policies DM01, DM03, DM17 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), and Policies CS NPPF and CS1 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012).

- 19.a) No site works or development (including any temporary enabling works, site clearance and demolition) shall take place until a dimensioned tree protection plan in accordance with Section 5.5 and a method statement detailing precautions to minimise damage to trees in accordance with Section 6.1 of British Standard BS5837: 2012 (Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction Recommendations) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
 - b) No site works (including any temporary enabling works, site clearance and demolition) or development shall take place until the temporary tree protection shown on the tree protection plan approved under this condition has been erected around existing trees on site. This protection shall remain in position until after the development works are completed and no material or soil shall be stored within these fenced areas at any time. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the protection plan and method statement as approved under this condition.

Reason: To safeguard the health of existing trees which represent an important amenity feature in accordance with Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), Policies CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012) and Policy 7.21 of the London Plan 2015.

20.a) No development shall take place until a scheme of hard and soft landscaping to the front forecourt area, including details of existing trees to be retained and size,

species, planting heights, densities and positions of any soft landscaping, has be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

- b) All work comprised in the approved scheme of landscaping shall be carried out before the end of the first planting and seeding season following occupation of any part of the buildings or completion of the development, whichever is sooner, or commencement of the use.
- c) Any existing tree shown to be retained or trees or shrubs to be planted as part of the approved landscaping scheme which are removed, die, become severely damaged or diseased within five years of the completion of development shall be replaced with trees or shrubs of appropriate size and species in the next planting season.

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development in accordance with Policies CS5 and CS7 of the Local Plan Core Strategy DPD (adopted September 2012), Policy DM01 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) and 7.21 of the London Plan 2015.

21. The synagogue use at level 1 hereby approved shall only be used as a synagogue and for no other purpose (including any other purpose in Class D1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987, or in any provision equivalent to that class in any statutory instrument revoking and reenacting that Order with or without modification.

Reason: To enable the Local Planning Authority to exercise control of the type of use within the category in order to safeguard the amenities of the area.

22. The synagogue use hereby approved shall not be used before 7am on any day and not after 10pm on Sundays to Fridays or 11pm on Saturdays.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties.

23. No audible music shall be played at the premises outside the permitted opening hours of 7am to 10pm Sunday to Friday and 7am to 11pm on Saturdays.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties.

24. No more than a maximum of 276 persons shall be present on site in connection with the Synagogue use at any one time.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties.

25. Prior to the occupation of the development an Activities Management Plan (AMP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and the activities on the site shall be carried out in accordance with the approved AMP.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of occupiers of neighbouring residential properties.

- 26.a) No development other than demolition work shall take place unless and until a Drainage Strategy detailing all drainage works to be carried out in respect of the development herby approved and all Sustainable Urban Drainage System features to be included in the scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
 - b) The development herby approved shall not be first occupied or brought into use until the drainage works and Sustainable Urban Drainage System features approved under this condition have been implemented in their entirety.

Reason: To ensure that the development provides appropriate drainage infrastructure and to comply with Policy CS13 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (adopted September 2012), the Sustainable Design and Construction SPD (adopted April 2013) and Policies 5.13 and 5.14 of the London Plan 2015

27. No construction work resulting from the planning permission shall be carried out on the premises at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays, before 8.00 am or after 1.00 pm on Saturdays, or before 8.00 am or after 6.00pm pm on other days.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not prejudice the amenities of occupiers of adjoining residential properties in accordance with policy DM04 of the Development Management Policies DPD (adopted September 2012).

28. Provisions shall be made within the site to ensure that all vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway.

Reason: To ensure that the development does not cause danger and inconvenience to users of the adjoining pavement and highway.

29. Prior to the first occupation of the new dwellinghouse(s) (Use Class C3) hereby approved they shall all have been constructed to have 100% of the water supplied to them by the mains water infrastructure provided through a water meter or water meters and each new dwelling shall be constructed to include water saving and efficiency measures that comply with Regulation 36(2)(b) of Part G 2 of the Building Regulations to ensure that a maximum of 105 litres of water is consumed per person per day with a fittings based approach should be used to determine the water consumption of the proposed development. The development shall be maintained as such in perpetuity thereafter.

Reason: To encourage the efficient use of water in accordance with policy CS13 of the Barnet Core Strategy (2012) and Policy 5.15 of the March 2016 Minor Alterations to the London Plan and the 2016 Mayors Housing SPG.

30. Notwithstanding the details shown in the drawings submitted and otherwise hereby approved, prior to the first occupation of the new dwellinghouse(s) (Use Class C3) permitted under this consent they shall all have been constructed to meet and achieve all the relevant criteria of Part M4(2) of Schedule 1 to the

Building Regulations 2010 (or the equivalent standard in such measure of accessibility and adaptability for house design which may replace that scheme in future). The development shall be maintained as such in perpetuity thereafter.

Reason: To ensure the development meets the needs of its future occupiers and to comply with the requirements of Policies 3.5 and 3.8 of the March 2016 Minor Alterations to the London Plan and the 2016 Mayors Housing SPG.

31. Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved it shall be constructed incorporating carbon dioxide emission reduction measures which achieve an improvement of not less than 35% in carbon dioxide emissions when compared to a building constructed to comply with the minimum Target Emission Rate requirements of the 2010 Building Regulations. The development shall be maintained as such in perpetuity thereafter.

Reason: To ensure that the development is sustainable and minimises carbon dioxide emissions and to comply with the requirements of policies DM01 and DM02 of the Barnet Development Management Polices document (2012), Policies 5.2 and 5.3 of the London Plan (2015) and the 2016 Mayors Housing SPG.

Informative(s):

- 1. In accordance with paragraphs 186 and 187 of the NPPF, the Local Planning Authority (LPA) takes a positive and proactive approach to development proposals, focused on solutions. The LPA has produced planning policies and written guidance to assist applicants when submitting applications. These are all available on the Council's website. A pre-application advice service is also offered and the Applicant engaged with this prior to the submissions of this application. The LPA has negotiated with the applicant/agent where necessary during the application process to ensure that the proposed development is in accordance with the Development Plan.
- The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) applies to all 'chargeable development'.
 This is defined as development of one or more additional units, and / or an increase to existing floor space of more than 100 sq m. Details of how the calculations work are provided in guidance documents on the Planning Portal at www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil.

The Mayor of London adopted a CIL charge on 1st April 2012 setting a rate of £35 per sq m on all forms of development in Barnet except for education and health developments which are exempt from this charge. Your planning application has been assessed at this time as liable for a payment under Mayoral CIL.

The London Borough of Barnet adopted a CIL charge on 1st May 2013 setting a rate of £135 per sq m on residential and retail development in its area of authority. All other uses and ancillary car parking are exempt from this charge. Your planning application has therefore been assessed at this time as liable for a payment under Barnet CIL.

Please note that Indexation will be added in line with Regulation 40 of Community Infrastructure Levy.

Liability for CIL will be recorded to the register of Local Land Charges as a legal charge upon your site payable should you commence development. Receipts of the Mayoral CIL charge are collected by the London Borough of Barnet on behalf of the Mayor of London; receipts are passed across to Transport for London to support Crossrail, London's highest infrastructure priority.

You will be sent a 'Liability Notice' that provides full details of the charge and to whom it has been apportioned for payment. If you wish to identify named parties other than the applicant for this permission as the liable party for paying this levy, please submit to the Council an 'Assumption of Liability' notice, which is also available from the Planning Portal website.

The CIL becomes payable upon commencement of development. You are required to submit a 'Notice of Commencement' to the Council's CIL Team prior to commencing on site, and failure to provide such information at the due date will incur both surcharges and penalty interest. There are various other charges and surcharges that may apply if you fail to meet other statutory requirements relating to CIL, such requirements will all be set out in the Liability Notice you will receive. You may wish to seek professional planning advice to ensure that you comply fully with the requirements of CIL Regulations.

If you have a specific question or matter you need to discuss with the CIL team, or you fail to receive a 'Liability Notice' from the Council within 1 month of this grant of planning permission, please email us at: cil@barnet.gov.uk.

Relief or Exemption from CIL:

If social housing or charitable relief applies to your development or your development falls within one of the following categories then this may reduce the final amount you are required to pay; such relief must be applied for prior to commencement of development using the 'Claiming Exemption or Relief' form available from the Planning Portal website: www.planningportal.gov.uk/cil.

You can apply for relief or exemption under the following categories:

- 1. Charity: If you are a charity, intend to use the development for social housing or feel that there are exception circumstances affecting your development, you may be eligible for a reduction (partial or entire) in this CIL Liability. Please see the documentation published by the Department for Communities and Local Government

 at https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/631 4/19021101.pdf
- 2. Residential Annexes or Extensions: You can apply for exemption or relief to the collecting authority in accordance with Regulation 42(B) of Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010), as amended before commencement of the chargeable development.
- 3. Self Build: Application can be made to the collecting authority provided you comply with the regulation as detailed in the legislation.gov.uk

Please visit http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/c

for further details on exemption and relief.

- The applicant is advised that for construction works adjacent or affecting the
 public highways, the Council's First Contact should be contacted on 028 359 2000
 for any necessary Highways Licences or any Highway approvals deemed
 necessary.
- 4. Refuse collection point should be located at a ground floor level and within 10m of the refuse vehicle parking bay. Levelled access should be provided for the refuse collection personnel to collect the bins. The refuse collection personnel are not expected to push the bins on an inclined surface to safeguard their Health and Safety requirements. The applicant is advised that the Council's refuse collection department is consulted to agree a refuse collection arrangement.
- 5. The applicant is advised that any additional works required on public highway to facilitate the development will require a separate agreement with the Highways Authority under S184 or S278 of the Highways Act 1980.
- 6. Any highway approval as part of the planning process for the reinstatement or alteration to the existing access/crossover or provision of a new access/crossovers will be subject to detailed survey by the Crossover Team in Development and Regulatory Services as part of the application for access/crossover under Highways Act 1980 and would be carried out at the applicant's expense including any relocation of street furniture, lighting columns or amendments to parking bays affected by the proposed works. An estimate for this work could be obtained from London Borough of Barnet, Development and Regulatory Services, Barnet House, 1255 High Road, Whetstone, N20 0EJ.
- 7. The applicant is advised that Golders Green Road NW11 is Traffic Sensitive Road, deliveries during the construction period should not take place between 8.00 am-9.30 am and 4.30 pm-6.30 pm Monday to Friday. Careful consideration must also be given to the optimum route(s) for construction traffic and the Development and Regulatory Services should be consulted in this respect.
- 8. In complying with the contaminated land condition parts 1 and 2, reference should be made at all stages to appropriate current guidance and codes of practice. This would include:
 - 1) The Environment Agency CLR & SR Guidance documents (including CLR11 'Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination');
 - 2) National Planning Policy Framework (2012) / National Planning Practice Guidance (2014);
 - 3) BS10175:2011 Investigation of potentially contaminated sites Code of Practice;
 - 4) Guidance for the safe development of housing on land affected by contamination, (2008) by NHBC, the EA and CIEH;
 - 5) CIRIA report C665 Assessing risks posed by hazardous ground gases to buildings;
 - 6) CIRIA report C733 Asbestos in soil and made ground: a guide to understanding and managing risks.

Please note that in addition to the above, consultants should refer to the most relevant and up to date guidance and codes of practice if not already listed in the above list.

- 9. The applicant is advised to engage a qualified acoustic consultant to advise on the scheme, including the specifications of any materials, construction, fittings and equipment necessary to achieve satisfactory internal noise levels in this location.
 - In addition to the noise control measures and details, the scheme needs to clearly set out the target noise levels for the habitable rooms, including for bedrooms at night, and the levels that the sound insulation scheme would achieve.
- 10. The Council's Sustainable Design and Construction Supplementary Planning Document requires that dwellings are designed and built to insulate against external noise so that the internal noise level in rooms does not exceed 30dB(A) expressed as an Leq between the hours of 11.00pm and 7.00am, nor 30dB(A) expressed as an Leq between the hours of 7.00am and 11.00pm (Guidelines for Community Noise, WHO). This needs to be considered in the context of room ventilation requirements.

The details of acoustic consultants can be obtained from the following contacts: a) Institute of Acoustics and b) Association of Noise Consultants.

The assessment and report on the noise impacts of a development should use methods of measurement, calculation, prediction and assessment of noise levels and impacts that comply with the following standards, where appropriate:

- 1) BS 7445(2003) Pt 1, BS7445 (1991) Pts 2 & 3 Description and measurement of environmental noise:
- 2) BS 4142:2014 Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas:
- 3) BS 8223: 2014 Guidance on sound insulation and noise reduction for buildings: code of practice;
- 4) Department of Transport: Calculation of road traffic noise (1988);
- 5) Department of Transport: Calculation of railway noise (1995);
- 6) National Planning Policy Framework (2012)/ National Planning Policy Guidance (2014).

Please note that in addition to the above, consultants should refer to the most relevant and up to date guidance and codes of practice if not already listed in the above list.

11. The Air Quality Stage 4 Review and Assessment for the London Borough of Barnet has highlighted that this area currently experiences or is likely to experience exceedances of Government set health-based air quality standards. A list of possible options for mitigating poor air quality is as follows: 1) Use of passive or active air conditioning; 2) Use of acoustic ventilators; 3) Altering lay out so habitable rooms are sited away from source of poor air quality; 4) Non residential usage of lower floors; 5) Altering footprint by siting further away from source of poor air quality.

For developments that require an Air Quality report; the report should have regard to the air quality predictions and monitoring results from the Stage Four of the Authority's Review and Assessment available from the LPA web site and the

London Air Quality Network. The report should be written in accordance with the following guidance: 1) Environmental Protection UK Guidance: Development Control: Planning for Air Quality (2010); 2) Environment Act 1995 Air Quality Regulations; 3) Local Air Quality Management Technical Guidance LAQM.TG(09); 4) London Councils Air Quality and Planning Guidance (2007).

Please note that in addition to the above, consultants should refer to the most relevant and up to date guidance and codes of practice if not already listed in the above list.

RECOMMENDATION III:

That if an agreement has not been completed by 31 January 2017, that unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Planning Performance and Business Development Manager should REFUSE the application 16/4409/FUL under delegated powers for the following reasons:

The proposed development does not include a formal undertaking to meet requirements of provision of affordable housing and a highways feasibility investigation. The proposal would therefore not address the impacts of the development, contrary to policies CS NPPF, CS4 and CS9 of the Local Plan Core Strategy (2012) and policies DM10 and DM17 of the Barnet Development Management Policies (2012).

REAR OF 70 HUTTON GROVE LONDON N12 8DR - 16/4772/FUL

Councillor Shimon Ryde re-entered the meeting.

The Planning Officer presented the application.

The Committee received oral representations from a speaker who spoke in objection to the application and from the applicant's agent.

The Chairman moved to the officer's recommendation, which was to approve the application. Votes were recorded as follows:

For	1
Against	6
Abstentions	0

A Committee Member moved a motion which was seconded and agreed, to amend the recommendations for the following reasons.

Votes were recorded as follows:

For	5
Against	1
Abstentions	1

The Committee therefore RESOLVED to REFUSE the application, being a reversal of the officer's recommendation.

Reasons:

The proposed development by virtue of its scale, size, siting in the rear garden area, layout and restricted access via an existing side entrance gate would fail to reflect the spatial pattern of development in the surrounding area and resulting in a loss of usable garden space. The proposal would therefore be detrimental to the character and appearance of the application site and surrounding area, contrary to the National Planning Policy Framework 2012, London Plan 2016 Policy 7.3, Core Strategy Policies CS1 and CS5, Development Management Policy DM01 and the Residential Design Guidance SPD (Adopted October 2016).

LAND REAR OF 16 NETHERCOURT AVENUE LONDON N3 1PT - 16/4939/FUL

The Planning Officer presented the application to the Committee.

The Committee received oral representations from two public speakers who spoke in objection to the application and from the applicant's agent.

Following discussion, votes were recorded as follows:

For	4
Against	3
Abstentions	0

The Committee RESOLVED to APPROVE the application, as per officer's recommendations.

12. LAND REAR OF 32 NETHER STREET NORTH FINCHLEY LONDON N12 7NL - 16/5611/FUL

The planning officer presented the application to the Committee.

Following discussion, the votes were recorded as follows:

For	7
Against	0
Abstentions	0

The Committee therefore **RESOLVED to APPROVE the application**, as per officer's recommendations.

13. 130-132 AUDLEY ROAD LONDON NW4 3HG - 16/5875/FUL

This item relates to the West Hendon ward and therefore had been considered by the Hendon Area Committee.

14. ANY ITEM(S) THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT

There were none.

The meeting finished at 9.35 pm